House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
®in Lakh
As at
A March 31, 2022 il 1, 2021
ASSETS
1 Non-Current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3a 91026 105.64 118.44
(b} Capital work-In-progress £ 4L90 - -
feh  Right-of-use assets 4a 4,746.00 564.27 G4E.42
(d)  Other intangible assets L 5.08 0.68 192
[e] Financial assets
{i} security deposits 3 41167 13.38 9.78
{f} Deferred tax assets (net) 7 470.32 1200 mm
(g} MNaon-current tax assets {net) B 15.68 rn 46,33
(h}  Cther non-current assets £ 9282 = .
Total - Non-current assets 6,695.18 733.18 832.00
Il Current assets
[a)  Inventories 10 971.08 518.96 315.20
{b) Financial assets
(i} current investments 5 191731 - -
(i) Loans F 1015 532 1250
{iit) Security deposits 12z 12.65 9197 83.25
() Trade receivabies 13 227.74 349,78 443.07
(v} Cash and Cash equivalants 14 11093 96.77 2157
(vil Bank baiance other than Cash and Cash equivalents 15 10.56 514 101
(D} Other Current assets. 16 408.81 4369 3403
Tatal - Current assets 3,669.23 1,115.13 §14.64
TOTAL- ASSETS 1036841 XY 174665
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
I Eguity
{a} Equity share Capital 17 100,10 nse 1000
(b} Other equity 18 4,526.55 468.35 -242.91
Total - Equity 8,626.66 479.93 -232.91
Il Non-Current labilities
{a] Financial Gabilities
i) Betrowings 19 - 210.84 850,75
[l Lease labilities I 4,048,405 114.88 24975
(i} Deposits 0 7155 67.13 6214
{b)  Provisions il 75.83 4055 2718
Total - Non-Current liabilities 4,199.83 433,39 1,388.91
Il Current liabilities
(@) Financial Labilities
{ii Borrowings 2 . 16.33 13.17
i} Lease labilites b 64344 421969 186.61
(W) Trade payables
Total ing dues of micro : and small ent b5 8330 83159 126.79
Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than micro 432,12 184.36 B3.28
mnimiprises and smal entenprises
{iv) Cther Financial Uabilities kL 20056 BLES §7.33
(b} Provisions 25 1385 033 006
i3} Other Currant hahilities 6 15385 138.93 7641
Total - Current liabilities 1,537.92 034.60 589.65
TOTAL - EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 10,364.01 1,848.31 1,746.65 |
Summary of significant accounting pelicies 13
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financlal staterments, (]
Ag per our report of even date
Fors CVJ & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Farm Registration No. 14841
Sheetal Jethajl Solanki
Partner
Membership No: 174874
{Chief Financial Officer)
Place: Mumbal Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: Lith May, 2023 Date: 11th May, 2023 Date: 11th May, 2023



House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
®in Lakh
Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
I Revenue from operations 27 5021.31 2,856.24
Il Other income 28 170.79 70.69
it Total income (I + n 5,192.10 2,926.93
IV Expenses
(a) Cost of materials Consumed 29a 1,465.44 371.79
(b} Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 29b (317.84) (154.21)
(¢} Emplayee benefits expense 30 1,560.92 884.52
(d) Finance Costs 31 207.98 B9.08
(e} Depreciation and amortisation expense 3z 578.01 13843
(f) Rent expense 120.53 7.70
(g} Other expenses 33 3,222.30 1,406.70
Total expenses 6,837.33 2,844.00
V' Profit/(Loss) before tax (111 - Iv) {1,645.23) 82.93
VI Income tax expense
{a) Current tax - -
(b) Deferred tax 34 (453.07) (5.23)
a53.07) (5.23)
VIl Profit/(Loss) for the year (V - Vi) (1,192.15) 88.16
Vil Other Comprehensive incoma/ (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a} Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans -22.79 1.03
Income tax effect on above 5.86 -0,35
(b) Fair value gains/ (losses) on equity instruments ' 3
Income tax effect on above
Total other Comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year -16.93 0.68
IX  Total Comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (VI + Vil (1,209.09) 88.84
X Earnings per equity share [Nominal value of share % 10 15
(Mmarch 31,2022 : x10))
Basic (%) (139.35) 76.16
Diluted () (139.35) 76.16
Summary of significant accounting policies 1.3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For § CV ] & Associates

Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No, 148419W '-:\\

Sheetal Jethaji Solanki
Partner 1 N ’ -
Membership No: 174874

(DIN: D1842066) (DIN: 07773852)

e
it Singhal

(Chief Financial Officer)

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 11th May, 2023 Date: 11th May, 2023 Date: 11th May, 2023
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House of Masabe Lifestyle Private Limited
Stasement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
Yaar ended
Horns Masch 31, 2023
Cash flows from operating activities
Lass before tax (1645, 23) 8293
Adjustments for:
Depeeciation and smortisation axpenss 31 57801 23843
Finance costs a 207 .58 908
Gain on retirement of right-of-use assets 28 (8:41)
Fient concession on ease rentals b . 137 95)
[Frofit)f Lass on sale, discard of property, plant and equipment 44,78 1753
Nat (gain)/ los recorded in profit or loss on financial Habllities designated as at fair 28 [13.04) (9.23)
valu through prafit or loss
Interast an FD 28 (13.50) .
Liabilities no longer required written back FH
Nt gain en sale of current vestmenls ®» [CTREET)
Lupense/ (income) on financial assats/ Nabiities that is designated as 28 |69.43) -
falr value through profit or loss
Provision far doubtful debts, deposits and advances a3 67.60
Operating peofit betare working capital changes (90%.22} 380,86
Changes in waorking capital;
{Increase)/ decrease in trade receivabies S9a 2339
(Ineraase)f decrense in inveniories (452.81) 1199 26)
[Incraase |/ decrease in other assets fo.83) 318
{Increase|/ decrease in other current financial assets 445,441 |4.85),
{increase]/ decrease in other current assets 385.12) 16.54)
(Increase)/ decrease in other non current assess [92.62)
Increase/ (decrease) In trade payables 2157 B6 5188
Increase/ {decrease) In provivans 876 1471
Increae/ (decrease] in other Current liabilities 011 50.24
Increase/ (decrease) in other Financial liabilities 119.87 32.62)
Cash generated from oparations (1,785.32} 396.85
Income taxes padd (net of refund) 2153 912
Nt cash ows from oparsting sctivities {1,763.79 w7
Cash flows from invasting activitias
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and capital advance (942.01) (23.28)
Irvestmant In Mutual Funds -3,999.80 -
Investmant in Faed Deposlis (10.56) *
Procasds from sale of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets - 010
Procesds from sale/ maturity of current investments 2,200.00 -
Interest received 13.50 10.14);
Net cash flows used In investing activities 738 88, 23
Cash flows from fnancing sctivities
Froceeds from issusnce of equity share cagital 5,355.82 159
al b gs 122747) 136.03
Lease liabilies 1611.08) [#36.23)
Interest paid 15.88) 1a.48)
et cath flows used In financing sctivities 451169 (20%.13)
Met Decreass In cash and cash agulvalents 9.02 79.92
Cash and cash equivalents 3 the beginning of the year 101 52 2258
Caih and cash squlvalents st the snd of the year 14 1_% 101.92
Companents of Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks - on current accounts 11093 56.77
Balances with banks - on deposit accounts joriginal maturity less than 3 montha) - 5.14
110.93 10192
Total Cash and cash aguivalents 11093 101.92
The sccompanying notes sre sn integral part of the financial statemants,
AS e our feport of even date e -
For S CV J & Associstes a\u For and on bahalf of the

Chartered Accountanty
ICAI Firm Reglstration Mo, 148416W

Shoatal Jethafl Solankl
Partner
Membership No: 174874

Place! Mumbai
Datw: 11th May, 2023

House of Masaba

Flace: Mumbal
Date: 11th May, 2023

|Chisd Financial Officer)

Placa: Murmibal

Date: 11th May, 2023



House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

1. Significant accounting policies
1.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended by notification dated 31
May, 2021), read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and presentation requirements of Division
IT of Schedule II of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act as applicable. The financial statements have been
prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention, except the following assets and liabilities, which have
been measured at fair value as required by the relevant Ind AS:

«  Certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments);
s Defined employee benefit plans;

«  Right of use assets and lease liabilities are measured at fair value; and

e Derivative financial instruments.

For all the periods upto and including the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company prepared its financial statements
in accordance with accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules 2006 (as amended)
and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 are the first financial statement prepared in accordance
with Ind AS. Please refer Note 46 for an explanation of how the transition from previous accounting standards (GAAP)
to Ind AS has affected the Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

1.2 Functional and Presentation Currency:

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (%) which is the functional currency of the Company. All
amounts are rounded to two decimal places to the nearest Lakhs, unless otherwise stated,

1.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(1) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:
Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current
A liability is treated as current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

(II) Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The Board of Directors of the Company assesses the financial performance and position of t'he
Company. The Managing Director has been identified as the CODM. The Company.operates in one segment only i.c.




House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(I11)

(a)
(b)

Sale of garments and fashion Accessories. Accordingly, no additional segment disclosure has been made for the
business segment. The Company has disclosed its segmental information based on geographical area viz Within India
and Outside India.

Segm in icies

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and
presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole.

Fair value measurements and hierarchy

The Company measures financial instruments, such as investments (other than equity investments in subsidiaries and
Jjoint ventures) and derivatives at fair value at each Balance Sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use, or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances, and for which sufficient data are
available to measure the fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
uncbservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within
the fair value hierarchy based on its nature, characteristics and risks:

* Level 1 - inputs are quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

» Level 2 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable; and

« Level 3 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
uncbservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

av) Foreign currencies

Transactions and balances:

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded applying the exchange rate at the date of transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, remaining unsettled at the end of the year, are translated
at the closing exchange rates prevailing on the Standalone Balance Sheet date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value
of the item (ie. translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI) or the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss are also reclassified in OCI or the
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, respectively). FEa N —




House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023

)

(VD)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods/ services to
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expect to be entitled for those
goods/ services.

To recognize revenues, the Company applies the following five-step approach:

Identify the contract with a customer;

Identify the performance obligations in the contract;

Determine the transaction price;

Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
Recognize revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue from sale of products

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of returns and allowances,
trade discounts and volume rebates, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment excluding taxes
or duties collected on behalf of the government,

Goods and Service Tax (GST) is not received by the Company in its own account, Rather, it is tax collected on

value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.
d liabilities arising from righ turn

The Company has contracts with customers which entitles them the unconditional right to return.

Right to return assets

A right of return gives an entity a contractual right to recover the goods from a customer (return asset), if the
customer exercises its option to return the goods and obtain a refund. The asset is measured at the carrying
amount of the inventory, less any expected costs to recover the goods, including any potential decreases in the
value of the returned goods.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is the obligation to refund part or all of the consideration recejved (or receivable) from the
customer. The Company has therefore recognized refund liabilities in respect of customer’s right to return. The
liability is measured at the amount the Company ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer. The
Company updates its estimate of refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the
end of each reporting period.

The Company has presented its right to return assets and refund liabilities as required under Ind AS 115 in the
financial statements.

Income from gift voucher

Gift voucher sales are recognized when the vouchers are redeemed, and the goods are sold to the customer.

Income from services

Income from services is recognized as they are rendered based on agreements/ arrangements with the concerned
parties, and recognized net of goods and services tax/ applicable taxes.

Interest income

Interest income on all debt instruments is measured at amortized cost. Interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. When calculating the EIR, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument. Interest income is included in other income in
the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Government grants




House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Government grants are recognized where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attached conditions will be complied with:

(VII)

(VIII)

When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of
the related asset.

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, at a below-market rate
of interest, the effect of this favorable interest is treated as a government grant. The loan or assistance is
initially recognized and measured at fair value, and the government grant is measured as the difference
between the proceeds received and the initial carrying value of the loan. The loan is subsequently measured as
per the accounting policies applicable to financial liabilities.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalized as part of the
cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur in the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Borrowing cost includes interest and other costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings.

Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the interest
costs.

Taxes
Current tax

The Income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income

based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date in India.

The management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except when the deferred tax
liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or a liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor the taxable
profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or a liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor the taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered. TSN




House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(IX)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
lax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as a part of business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate
recognition at that date, are recognized subsequently if new information is received or circumstances change.
Acquired deferred tax benefits recognized within the measurement period reduce goodwill related to that
acquisition, if they result from new information obtained about facts and circumstances existing at the
acquisition date.

The Company had adopted the new tax regime in the Financial Year 2019-20 under Section 115BAA of the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019,

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
are recognized outside the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (either in OCI or in equity). Current tax
and deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in
equity.

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items. Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes borrowing costs for long-term construetion
projects, if the recognition criteria is met.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is de-recognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost net of accumulated impairment losses, if any,

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is caleulated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the
asset estimated by the management. Depreciation on additions is provided on a pro rata basis from the month
of installation or acquisition. Depreciation on deletions/ disposals is provided on a pro rata basis upto the
month preceding the month of deletions/ disposals. The management believes that these estimated useful
lives reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. The Company has

used the following rates to provide depreciation on its tangible fixed assets:

(a) Assets where useful life is same as Schedule 11

Assets Useful life as prescribed by
Schedule II of the Companies Act,
2013

Factory buildings 30 vears

Fences, wells, tube wells 5 years

Borewells (pipes, tubes and other fittings) 5 years

Other office equipment 5 years _

Electrical installations and equipment (at factory) | 10 years

(b) Assets where useful life differ from Schedule 11

i 3
Assets Useful life as Estimated
prescribed by useful life
Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013
EI:'.:::; and machinery - retail stores & Processing 15 years 5~ Gyears

/Y - b ...;- \
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Furniture and fittings — retail stores 10 years 5 — b years
Furniture and fittings — shop in shop stores 10 vears 3 years
Motorcycles, scooters and other mopeds 10 vears 5 years
Motor buses, motor lorries and motor cars other 6 years for motor cars 4 — 5 years
than those used in a business of running them on and 8 years for motor
hire buses and motor lorries
Servers, end user devices, such as desktops, 3 vears for end user 4 years
laptops, ete, devices and 6 years for

Servers
Furniture and fittings (other than retail stores) 10 years 7 years
Office electrical equipment 5 years 4 years
Electrically operated vehicles including battery 8 years 5 years
powered or fuel cell powered vehicles

Useful life of assets different from that prescribed in Schedule 11 has been estimated by the management,
supported by technical assessment.

Leasehold assets
Assets Estimated useful life
Leasehold improvements at stores 5 to 6 years or period of lease, whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements other than | Period of lease
stores 4]

Based on managements’ assessment, items of property, plant and equipment individually costing less than
five thousand rupees, are depreciated within one year from the date the asset is ready to use or useful life of
class of asset to which these assets belong,

Gains or losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount. These are included in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss within other gains/
losses.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is
reflected in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite,

Intangible assets with finite life are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment,
whenever there is an indication that the inta ngible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period and changes if any, made on prospective basis. The amortisation expense on intangible

assets with finite lives is recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful life are not amortised, but are tested for impairment an nually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Standalone Statement
of Profit and Loss when the asset is de-recognized.

Amortisation methods and periods

A summary of amortisation policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as below:

Intangible assets Usefullife | Amortisation method used|
Computer software 3 years , _a;nomsed A Str"‘igh"w
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Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the IGAAP carrying value of all of its
intangible assets recognized as at 1 April 2021 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that ca rrying value
as the deemed cost of the intangible assets,

(XIV) Impairment of non-financial assets

(xv)

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment based on internal/ external factors. An impairment loss, if any,
is charged to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss in the vear in which an asset is identified as
impaired. An asset’s recoverable amount is higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit’s (CGUs) fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rates, that reflects current market assessment of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount, Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on
inventories, are recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually as at reporting
date. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other
assets of the unit pro-rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognized directly in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Reversal of impairment losses except on goodwill is recorded when there is an indication that the impairment
losses recognized for the assets no longer exist or have decreased. An im pairment loss recognized for goodwill
is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assess whether:

*  The contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly
and should be physically distinet or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct
asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

*  The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the
asset throughout the period of use; and

*  The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has the right when it has the
decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is
used. In rare cases where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is
predetermined, the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset either the Company has the
right to operate the asset; or the Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and
for what purpose it will be used.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices,

Where the Company is the lessee
Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date except for
short-term leases which are less than 12 months and leases of low value assets. The right-of-use asset is
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability plus any initial direct costs
incurred less any lease incentives received.
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The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. If
ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset, The
estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property. In
addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the lease liability.

Lease liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that
rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental
borrowing rate,

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise of fixed payments, including in-
substance fixed payments. The lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification arising due to
change in the lease term, change in the lease payments or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset. When the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made
to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property, and lease
liabilities, separately in the Standalone Balance Sheet.

Short-term leases and leases of low value assels

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to
be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Where the Company is the lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substa ntially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an
asset is classified as an operating lease. Assets subject to operating leases are included in the property, plant
and equipment. Rental income on an operating lease is recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and
Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expense
in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The amendments to Ind AS 116 provides a practical expedient to lessees in accounting for rent concessions
that are a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Many lessors have provided rent concessions to lessees as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. Rent
concessions can include rent holidays or rent reductions for a period of time. Applying the requirements in
Ind AS 116 for changes to lease payments, particularly assessing whether the rent concessions are lease
modifications and applying the required accounting, could be practically difficult in the current environment.
The objective of the amendment is to provide lessees that have been granted Covid-19 related rent
concessions with practical relief, while still providing useful information about leases to users of the financial
statements.

As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether a COVID-19 related rent concession from a
lessor is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election accounts for any change in lease payments
resulting from the COVID-19 related rent concession the same way it would account for the change under
Ind AS 116, if the change were not a lease modification. The practical expedient applies only to rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the following
conditions are met: e
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(i) The change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change.

(ii) Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before June 30, 2021.
(iii) There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

Pursuant to the above amendment, the Company has applied the practical expedient with effect from April
01, 2020. The Company has accounted the unconditional rent concessions in "Rent expense" in the
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Adoption of the COVID-19 related concessions — amendments to Ind AS 116, Leases with effect from April 1,
2021 has resulted in recognition of ¥ 219.18 crores as income from lease concession during the year, This
amendment is not expected to have any material impact on the Statement of Profit and Loss for the future
years.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when a Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss are recognized immediately in
the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place are recognized on the trade date.

All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair
value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial instruments of the Company are classified in the
following categories:

(a) Non-derivative financial assets

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial asset is measured at amortised cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR), if both the
conditions are met:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

¢ The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method:

The EIR method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
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instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). Interest income is recognized
in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item,

(i) Financial assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

An instrument shall be measured at FVTOCL, if both of the following conditions are met:

s The objective of the business model is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and
s  Theasset’s contractual cash flows represent Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI).

Financial assets included within FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting period at fair value plus transaction cost. Fair value movements are recognized in other
comprehensive income. However, the Company recognises interest income, impairment losses and
reversals and foreign exchange gain/ (loss) in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. On de-
recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from
equity to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Financial assets at Fair Value Throu gh Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (refer above) are
measured at FVTPL. In addition, financial assets that meet the amortised cost criteria or the
FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or financial assets that meet the FVTOCI
criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsisteney that would arise from measu ring
assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Company
has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any
gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and
Loss. The net gain or loss recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates
any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the 'Other income' line
item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the
dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and
the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Call options over shares in the acquired subsidiary is initially recognized as a financial asset at fair
value, with subsequent changes in fair value recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and
Loss,

(iv) Equity investments

All equity investments (except Investment in Subsidiaries and Joint Venture which does not fall
under scope of Ind AS 109 and are measured at cost) are measured at fair value as per Ind AS 109.
Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Company has an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income
subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable,
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If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value cha nges
on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no recyeling of the
amounts from OCI to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment.
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Impairment of finaneial assets:

The Company applies simplified approach of expected credit loss model for recognising
impairment loss on lease receivables, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash
or other financial asset.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights. Expected credit loss is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective
interest rate (or credit adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets).

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for
that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month
expected credit losses are portion of the lifetime expected credit losses and represent the lifetime
cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within 12 months after the reporting date and
thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

1f the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit
loss model in the previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the credit
risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality
as compared to the previous period, the Company again measures the loss allowance based on
12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit
losses. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on Lhe
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant
increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial assel that
results from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Company always measures
the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This
expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix, which takes into account
historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward looking information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are
equally applied to debt instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognized in
OCI and is not reduced from the carrying amount in thﬂ-Stﬂn@g]one RBalance Shcc_;.
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The Company determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on its investment
in its subsidiaries and joint venture. At each reporting date, the Company determines whether
there is objective evidence that the investment in the subsidiaries and joint venture is impaired. If
there is such evidence, the Company calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the subsidiaries and Joint venture and its carrying value, and
then recognises the impairment loss in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

(b) Non derivative financial liabilities

(i) Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument,

(1) Equity instruments:

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly
in equity. No gain or loss is recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss on
the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equily instruments.

(2) Compound financial instruments:

The component parts of compound financial instruments (convertible notes) issued by the
Company are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount
of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company's own equity
instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing
market interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recognized as
a liability on an amortised cost basis usin g the effective interest method until extinguished
upon conversion or at the instrument's maturity date.

(3) Financial liabilities:

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or
at FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify
for derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee
contracts issued by the Company, and commitments issued by the Company to provide a
loan at below-market interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting
policies set out below,

Financial liabilities at FVTPL.:

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for
trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. NI -
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A financial liability is classified as held for trading, if:

¢ It has been acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it
in the near term; or

*  On initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

» Itisaderivative that is not a financial guarantee contract or designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may, be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition, if:

e Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise;

»  The financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or
both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Company's documented risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the Company is provided internally on that basis; or

» It forms part of a contract contain ing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109
permits the entire combined contracts to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with
Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-
measurement recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Put Option on the Non-Controlling Interest (“NCI”) of subsidiary is initially measured
at the present value of the amount payable on exercise of the option, as per the terms of the
agreement. The subsequent changes in carrying amount is recognized in the Standalone
Slatement of Profit and Loss,

However, financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are designated as at FVTPL,
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is recognized in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in the Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are recognized in the
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value
of liability is always recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. Changes in
fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit risk that are recognized in other
comprehensive income are reflected immediately in other comprehensive income under
other equity and are not subsequently reclassified to the Standalone Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the
Company that are designated by the Company as at fair value through profit or loss are
recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost:

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying
amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are
determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised
as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line jtem.
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The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount on initial recognition.

(1i) Loans and borrowi ngs

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
over the period of borrowings using the FIR method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognized as the transaction cost of the loan to the extent it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fees are deferred until the draw down occurs, To the extent
that there is no evidence that is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity and amortised over the period of facility to which it
relates.

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date, are classified as liabilities.
The dividends on these preference shares are recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and
Loss as ‘Finance costs’,

(iii) Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign
currency and translated at the spol rate at the end of each reporting period.

»  For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL,
the exchange differences are recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, except
for those which are designated as hedging instruments in a hedging relationship.

+  For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI financial assets
are treated as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on
the amortised cost are recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, and other
changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognized in OCI.

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at
amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are
determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments and are recognized in 'Other income'.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial
liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair
value gains or losses and is recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition of financial assets and fina ncial liabilities

The Company de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for the amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amounl
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable, and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognized in OCI and accumulated in equity is recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss,
if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
on disposal of that financial asset.

On de-recognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (for example: when the Company retains
an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement and the part
it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognized and the sum of
the consideration received for the part no longer recognized and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to
it that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in the Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss, if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized in the Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in
other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognized and the part
that is no longer recognized on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

The Company de-recognises financial liabilities only when the Company's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms
is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new
financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability
(whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability de-recognized and the consideration paid and payable is
recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Finanecial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the Standalone Balance Sheet
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts, and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, to hedge its
foreign currency risks and options contract in accordance with agreement, Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair
value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative,

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognized in
OCl and later reclassified to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss when the hedge item affects the
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss or treated as basis adjustment, if a hedged forecast transaction
subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non- inancial liability.

(XVIIID) Inventories

Raw materials, components, stores and spares, and packing materials are valued at lower of cost or net
realisable value. However, these items are considered to be realisable at cost if the finished products, in which
they will be used, are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs in
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(X1X)

xx)

bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average cost
basis.

Traded goods, work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is
lower. Work-in-progress and finished goods include costs of direct materials, labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing cost. Traded
goods cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average cost basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordi nary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

Proceeds in respect of sale of raw materials/ stores are credited to the respective heads. Obsolete and
defective inventory are duly provided for, basis the management estimates (Refer Note - 40).

Provisions and contingent liabilities

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time
value of money is material).

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obl igation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, net of any reimbursements,

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably (Refer Note - 40).

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a
contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising
from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company (Refer Note - 45).

Claims against the Company, where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are
not disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of
income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the
related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognized.
Employee benefits
(a) Short- empl nefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense on accrual basis.

(b) Defin ntribution plan

The Company makes defined contribution to the Government Employee Provident Fund and
Superannuation Fund, which are recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, on accrual
basis. The Company recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when
an employee renders the related service. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution
payable to the provident fund.

() Defined benefit plan
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For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity (unfunded), the cost of provid ing benefits is determined
using the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance Sheet
date. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government
bonds that have terms approximating to the tenor of the related obligation. The liability or asset
recognized in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined benefit obligation
at the end of the reporting period. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the
net balance of the defined benefit obligation. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurements of the net defined liability, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, are recognized
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI) in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognized immediately in the profit or loss as past service cost.

(d) Compensated absences

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period
in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as an actuarially determined liability
at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of €quity shares outstanding during the period.

Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to
participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. Earnings, considered

in ascertaining the Company’s earnings per share, is the net profit for the period after deducting preference
dividends. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
period are adjusted for the effoets of all dilutive potential equity shares,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Standalone Balance Sheet and for the pu rpose of the Standalone Statement
of Cash Flows comprise cash on hand and cash at bank including fixed deposits with original maturity period
of three months and short-term highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less
net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management.
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NOTE: 4
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES
(a) Right-of-use assets
% in Lakh
Right of use Building Total
Cost
Asset Recognised as on April 01, 2021 658.77 658.77
Additions 134,61 134 61
Termination
As at March 31, 2022 793.38 793,38
Additions 4,799.51 4,7399.51
Modification 9,14 814
Termination 75.91 7591
As at March 31, 2023 5,507.84 5,507.84
Depreciation
Asset Recognised as on April 01, 2021 10.35 10.35
Depreciation for the year (Refer Note - 32) 21876 21878
Termination
As at March 31, 2022 229.11 219.11
Depreciation for the year (Refer Note - 32) 53136 53136
Termination 1.33 1.33
As at March 31, 2023 761.80 759.14
Net carrying value as at:
As at March 31, 2023 4,736.04 4,736.04
As at March 31, 2022 564.27 564.27
As at April 1, 2021 648.42 £48.42
Net carrying value
T in Lakh
As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021
Right-of-use assets 4,745.04 564.27 648.42
Total 4,746.04 564.27 648.42
(b) Lease liabilities
%in Lakh
As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021
Opening balance 544.57 636.40 -
Additions 465517 132,73 635.40
Retirements (93.45) -
Interast expense on lease liabilities 196,68 49,61 -
Rent concession (Refer Nate - 28) - (37.95) -
Payments (611.08) (236.22) -
Closing balance 4,691.89 544.57 636.40
Current 643.44 429.69 186,61
Non-current 4,048.45 114.88 449,79
Refer Statement of Cash Flow for total cash outflow on account of lease Payments during the years ended 1 Apr|| 2021, 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023
Fallowing are the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 March 2023, 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2021 on an undiscounted
% in Lakh
Particulars Asat As at As at
March 31, March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021
2023
Not later than one year 988,14 298.59 197.82
Later than one year but within five years 3,439,31 607.62 445,31
Later than five years 1,500.69 44.30 131.59
L 5.928.14 95051 77872
Following are expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022: X in Lakh
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021 —’
2023
Depreciation Expense on Right of Use asset 532.69 21879 >
Interest expense on lease liabilities 196.68 4961 -
Rent expenses related to short term leases 12053 7.70 -
Total exp ised in stat of profit and loss 249.90 276.10 >
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NOTE: 4b
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
X in Lakh
Computer Total
software
Cost EEN
As at April 01, 2021 5.87 5.87
Additions = -
Disposals 1.81 1.81
As at March 31, 2022 4.05 4.05
Additions 5.19 5.19
Disposals 2.88 2.88
As at March 31, 2023 6.37 6.37
Amortisation
As at April 01, 2021 3.94 3.94
Amortisation for the year 1.15 1.15
Disposals 1.72 1.72
As at March 31, 2022 3.38 3.38
Amortisation for the year 0.49 0.49
Disposals 2.59 2.59
As at March 31, 2023 1.28 1.28
Net carrying value as at:
March 31, 2023 5.09 5.09
March 31, 2022 0.68 0.68
April 01, 2021 1.92 1.92
Net carrying value
X in Lakh
31st March  31st March 2022 1st April 2021
2023
Other intangible assets 5.09 0.68 1.92
Total 5.09 0.68 1.92
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NOTE: 7
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)
Reflected in the Bal Sheet as foll
% in Lakh
As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021
Deferred tax assets 470.92 12.00 7.12
Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) (net) 470.92 12.00 7.12
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) relates to the following:
% in Lakh
Balance Sheet Statement of Profit and Loss
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Difference between carrying amount of Property Plant and
Equipment and Intangible Assets and their tax base 7.69 528 244 4.93
Provision for gratuity & Leave encashment 2132 9.60 11.72 252
Provision for doubtful debts 17.02 - 17.02 -
Disallowance under Section 438 and 40(a)(ia) of the Income Tax 1.93 5 193 =
Other Items giving rise to temporary differences
Expenses on which TDS has not been deducted under section
40(aj (ia) - - >,
Loss as per income tax computations available for offsetting
against future taxable income 414.17 - 414.17 -
impact of Ind A = i
a) Lease equalisation charges 20.25 (2.53) 22,78 2.22)
ROU assets and lease liabilities 4 *
Adjustment pursuant to adoption of Ind AS 118, recarded in -
retained earnings rs 2 4
Others 0.16 (0.33) 0.49 -
Measurement of Financial assets (Investments) at FVTPL (17.47) . (17.47) -
Net deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) 465.07 12.00 453.07 5.23
Recondliation of deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) (net):
R in Lakh
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
As at the beginning of the year 12.00 7.12
Deferred tax incomea/ (expense) recognised in profit and loss during the year (Refer Note - 34) 453.07 5.22
Deferred tax income/ (expense| recognised in OC! during the year (Refer Note - 34) 5.86 (0.35)
As at the end of the year 470.92 12.00
NOTE: 8
NON-CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)
T in Lakh
As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021
Advance tax and TDS (Net) 15.68 T 4632
Total 15,68 37.21 46.32
NOTE: 9
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Tin Lakh
As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021

Capital Advances

92.62

Total

92.62










House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

NOTE: 17
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised share capital
As at Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021

No. of shares XinLakh  No, of shares % in Lakh No. of shares ®in Lakh
Equity Share Capital
As at the beginning of the year 3,00,000 0.30 3,00,000 030 3,00,000 0.30
Issued during the year 11,00,000 Lio - - - -
As at the end of the year 14,00,000 1.40 3,00,000 0.30 3,00,000_ 0.30
Preference Share Capital @Rs. 10/ each
As at the beglaning of the year 9,00,000 0.90 9,00,000 0.90 9,00,000 0.90
Reduction an account of reclassification during the year -8,00,000 ~0.90 - - - -
As at the end of the year - - 9,00,000 0.90 9,00,000 0.90
Preference Share Capital @Rs, 100/ each
As at the boginning of the year 20,00,000 2.00 9,00,000 0.50 9,00,000 0.90
Reduction on aceaunt of reclassification during the year ~20,00,000 -2.00 . - =
As at the end of the year - - s‘uoicm 0.80 9|nn 000 0.90
Issued, Subscribed and paid-up equity share capital

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As st April 1, 2021

No. of shargs ® in Lakh No. of shares % in Lakh No. of shares T in Lakh
As at the beginning of the year 1,15,754 11.58 1,00,010 10.00 1,00,010 10.00
Increase during the year towards:

Fresh issue of Equity Share 47,549 475 15,744 157 -
Banus Issue of Equity Share B,37,743 LEWFS - E
As at the end of the year 10,01,046 100.10 115,754 11.58 100,010 10.00
(i) Shares heid by Promoters :
P rg As at 3151 March, 2023 As at 3135t March, 2022
% Change during the
Promoter name No. of Shares % of total shares No. of Shares | % of total shares |year

Masaba Richards 4,76,055 48% 90,000 78% -30%)
Aditya Birla Fashion Retail Limited & its nominees 5,24,991 5F% 52%|
Total 10,01,046 100% 90,000 78%

(i} Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having face value as % 10/- each, Every holder of equity shares s entitled to one vote per share, In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity
shares will be entitled to receive any of the 1§ assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferantial amounts,

(1ii} Rectassification of Authorised Share Capital
During the year, the Company has redlassified its authorized share capital from Rs. 1,40,00,000 divided into 3,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each amounting to Rs. 30,00,000, 20,000 preference shares of Rs, 100/-
each amounting Rs. 20,00,000 and 9,00,000 preference shares of Rs. 10/- sach amounting Rs. 90,00,000 to Rs. 1,40,00,000 divided inta 14,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- sach vide resslution passed in the annual

(i) Fresh Issue of Euity Shares

During the year, the Company has allotted 47,549 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 /- each fully paid up at a premium of fs. 11,553 /- vide resolution passed in the 2 of Board of Di of the ¢ v

{v) Fresh Issue of Bonus Equity Shares
During the year, the Company has allotted 8,37,743 fully paid up bonus equity shares ta its existing shareholders vide resolution passed in the annual general meeting of the Company held on August 16, 2022,

(vi) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at April 1, 2021
No. of shares % of paid-up No, of shares % of paid-up No. of shares % of paid-up
held share capital held share capital held share capital
Aditya Birla Fashion & Retail Limited (ABFRL) & its Nominee 5,24,951 52% = = = 5
Masaba Richards 4,76,055 8% 90000 Ta% 50000 G0%
litendra Bansal . - 9333 B%
Sagar Chabbra - - - 0% 10000 10%
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(vii) Shares held by Holding/Ultimate Holding Company andj/ or their Subsidiarias/Associales
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its Helding Company are as below :

Name of Shareholder at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at April 1, 2021
No. of shares % of paid-up No.ofshares % of paid-up No, of shares % of paid-up
held share capital held share capital held share capital
Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited* 5,24,991 52% - < E =
“Effective June 1, 2022, Aditya Birla Fashion and Retall Limited is the Holding Company.
NOTE: 18
OTHER EQUITY
% In Lakh
Asat As at As et
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021
Reserves and surplus
Securities premium
As at the beginning of the year 1,281.52 659.47 659.47
Increase during the year
Issue of Fresh Equity Shares 5,540.88
Conversion of Preference Shares 622.05
Utilised during the year
For issue of Bonus Share -83.77
For Share issue expenses -185.82
As at the end of the year 6,548.81 1,281.52 659.47
Retained earnings
As at the beginning of the year {815.20) (903.37) (910.94)
Profit/{Loss) for the year {1,192.16) BA.17 7.56
As at the end of the year 12,007.36) (815.20) (903.37)
T in Lakh
As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans
As at the beginning of the year 203 1m
Gains/ {losses) during the year (16.93) 1.02 101
As at the end of the year {.‘ll.Wl 2.03 101
Total 4,526.55 458,34 (242.50)
Other equity
Tin Lakh
Asat As at As at
Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021
Reserves and surplus
Securities premium 6,548.81 1,281.52 659.47
Retained earnings 12,007.36) (815.20) (903.37)
Other comprehensive incame
Remeasurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (14.90) 203 1.01
Fair value gains/ (losses) on equity instruments -
Total 4,526.55 .35 (242.91)
The description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within cther equity is as follows:
1. Securities pramium
Securities premium is used to record the premium an jssue of shares, and js utilised in with the p of the C; Act, 2013,

2. Retained eamings

The cumulative gain or loss arising from the aperations which is retained by the Company is recognized and accumulated under the heading of retained earnings. At the and of the year, the profit after tax/ loss

is transferred from the statement of profit and loss to retained earmnings.

3. Other comprehansive income
Other compr income pri tuarial gains and losses on defined benefit obligation,

4. Remeasurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans

The cumulative balances of gaing/ {losses| arising on remeasurements of defined benafit plan is accumulated and recognised within this
i v io of Prafit and Loss.

remeasurement gaing {losses) reserve will not be

of other comprehensi

income. items inciudad in
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NOTE: 19
NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS
Asat As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021
Unsecured, measured at amortised cost
Term Loans from Bank - 7.17 40,34
Current maturities of Long term debts -16.33 -13.17
Net Term Loan from Bank 10.84 27.17
Convertible Note from Shareholder - 200.00 200,00
Unsecured, measured at FVTPL
Serles A - Preference Shares = - 623,62
0.001%, 15,744 (P.¥_ Nil} Curnulative, Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each, fully paid
Total - 210.84 850.79

Notes 19a
a. Term Loan from Bank consists of the following:
- Business Loan from HDFC Bank amounting to Rs. NiL{as at 31 March 2022: P.Y. 15.62 Lakhs), the loan has been repald fully during the year.

- Business Loan from HDFC bank amounting to Rs, NIL/- (P.Y. .11.53 lakhs/-) is unsecured and interest is chargable @ 8.25% p.a., the lean has been repaid fully during the year,
b. Convertibie note from Shareholder amounting to Rs. NIL/- (P.Y. 2,00,00,000) are unsecured and interest is chargeable @ 15% p.a., the loan has been repald fully during the year,

Note 19b
The Company has repaid its entire borrowings before the end of first quarter of current financial year and hence was not required to submit the periodic stock and book debts staternents
with Banks and financial institutions. Accordingly, the disclosure w.rt, reconciliation of amounts as per stock and book debts returns submitted and amounts appearing in books of accounts

at the end of each quarter are not applicable. The disclosure under the same clause for previous financial year is as follows ;
Particulars As per Books As per data Difference Reason for material discrepancies
submitted to
bank
Stock 518.48 427.35 91.11 |We have not reported raw material
stock when data submitted to bank
Debtors 349.78 38261 -32.83 |Creditors of Rs. 2.56 lakh adjusted

against debit balance of same customer
in F5, and advance customer of Rs.
19.43 lakh shown separetely in FS
Creditors 267.95 276.24 -8.29 |Creditors of Rs. 2.56 lakh adjusted
against debit balance of same customer
in FS, and advance paid to creditors of
Rs. 22.26 lakh shown separetely in FS
and Rs. 22.41 lakh provision added in
creditors ageing in FS and balance Ofs
|written off
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NOTE: 23
TRADE PAYABLES
% i Lakh
Asnt Aamt Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021
Total g dues of micre and small {Refer detals below) 43,30 8359 1267y
Total putstanding dues of creditors guhmr than mi and small P 44212 184.3¢ B3.28

Toul 525 42 267.95 218,07

Details of dues to Micrs and Small Enterprises

i Lakh
Asat At s wt

March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022 Aprll 1, 2081

#, The principal amount and the interest due

Princlpal amount due to Micre and Small Enterprises* B3.30 8158 12679
Interest due an the above >

b, The smount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Develcpment Act, -
2006, alang with the amount of the payment made t the supplier beyond the appointed day during sach accounting yaar

€. The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have basn paid but beyand the
anpainted doy during the yuar] but withaut sdding the inters st specifing under Micrs, Small and Medium Enierprives

Develooment Act. 2005

. The amaunt of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accaunting year - - -
= The amount of turther interest remaining due and Payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues - . &
a¢ ahove are actually paid to the small woterprise for the purpese of disail of a deductibl under Section 23 af

the Micre, 3mall and Medium Enterpeises Development Act, 2006,

The above disclosures are provided by the Company based on the infarmation avallable with the Campany in respect of the registration ststus of its vendors,

Ageing of Trade Payabies:
®in Lakh
[ Particulars om.smumamammuummmmanml
beidhoman Lass than 1 year] 1-2 yuars! 3veans|  More than 3 years Total|
7317 10.13 - - - £330 |
184.33 5173 < - . 44212
: =
Outstanding as mmmmzmmlmm due date of payment)
Mot due
ickioding wblilad Loun than 1 year| 1-2 yuars| 2-3years|  More than 3 yean Total|
- 8249 11 - - 83 59
184 36 - - - 184,36
Outstanding »3 an Apel 1,2021 (For fallowing pericds from dus date of payment)
'::'u:"'l Loss than 1 year 12 ywars Z3yeans|  More than 3years, Total

112.84 1358 037 : 126.79
% . 76.81 1199 038 Q.10 85.28

NOTE: 24
CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - OTHERS

Rin Lakh

A mt Asat As ol
March 3; March 31, 7022 |

Creditors for capital supplies 903
Cheque Overdrawn - . 6.53
Empluyes Payabie 122 45 8168 5199
Expanses Fayabie 0.08 = s
Toul T ] 77T
NOTE: 25
CURRENT PROVISIONS
Employee benefit obligation
Provision for compensated absences 138 L) .
Provigian far grutulty {feter Mote - 38) 1237 o.08 ooe
Total 4 13.65 039 0.08
NOTE: 28
OTHER CURRENT LIASILITIES

®in Lakh

As st Asnt Asat
March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022 April 1, 2021

Advances recoived from custormers 051 B0.97 a2.57
Statutery dues Payabla 7293 4176 120
Daterred income 11,01 1632 1140

Total 155.85 138.95 7641




House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
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NOTE: 27
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
T in Lakh
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from sale of products
Sale of products - Garments & Accessories 4,518.44 2,390.68

Total revenue from sale of products 4,918.44 2,390.68

Other operating income
Licence fees and royalties 4216 36.60
Professional Fees 60.71 428,96
Total 5!021.31 15556.2‘
(a) Right to return assets and refund liabilities:
2in Lakh
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Right to return assets 32.34 -

Refund liabilitles 38.76 -

(b) Contract balances:
¥in Lakh
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Contract assets
Trade receivables 227.74 345.78

Contract Liabilities
Advances received from customers 70.51 80.97
() Reconciliation of as recognised in the Standal 1 t of Profit and Loss with the contracted price:

% in Lakh
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Revenue as per contracted price 5.529.80 3,118.89

Less:

Sales return 508.45 262.64
Revenue as per the Statement of Profit and Loss 5,021.31 2,856.24
(e) Disclosure of disaggregated r recognised in the St of Profit and Loss based on geographical segment:

T in Lakh
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from customers outside India 876.77 578.37
Revenue from customers within India 4,144.54 2,277.87
Revenue as per the Stat of Profit and Loss 5,021.31 2,856.24
NOTE: 28
OTHER INCOME
Tin Lakh
As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest income on Fixed Deposits 13.50
Interest on IT Refund 142 348
Interest income on measurement of financial assets at amortised cost 23.04 9.22
Gain on wof i at FVTPL £0.43
Gain on retirement of right-of-use assets 8.41 4
Net gain on sale of current Investments 48.09 .
Provision no longer required written back 0.33% .
Miscellaneous income 6.51 5799
Total 170.79 70.6_9_
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NOTE: 29
COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
% in Lakh
Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(a) 1 - Fabric & Ac i
Inventories at the beginning of the year 140.39 95.34
Add: Purchases 1,600.22 416.83
1,740.61 512.18
Less: inventories at the end of the year 27517 140.39
Total 1,865.44 37179
(b) Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
Opening inventories
Finished goods E
Garments EEFA:L 178.11
Costmatics ol
Fashion Accessories 45.13 45.75
Work-in-progress -
378.07 223,86
Less:
Closing inventories
Finished goods
Garments 511.49 332.94
Costmetics 129.05 -
Fashion Accessories 25.39 4513
Waork-in-progress 29.98 -
695.91 378,07
I )/D in inventories (317.84) (154.21)
NOTE: 30
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
% in Lakh
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salaries, wages and bonus 1,271.98 684.11
Director Ramunaration 207.40 144.72
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note - 38) 15.54 6.98
Leave Encashment 3.76 4,00
Gratuity expense [Refer Note - 38) 17.42 11.07
Staff welfare expenses 44.82 3364
Total 1,560.92 884.52
NOTE: 31
FINANCE COSTS
Rin Lakh
Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest expense on borrowings 5.88 4.48
Interest expense on lease liabilities 196.68 49,61
Other borrowing costs - 30.00
rest expense an Fi Liabilitles at amortised cost 5.42 4.99
Total 207.68 u
NOTE: 32
DEFRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
T in Lakh
As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Refer Note - 3a) 40.23 18.49
Depreciation on right-of-use assets [Refer Note - 4a | 532.69 218.79
Amortisation on intangible assets (Refer Note - 4b) 5.09 1.15
Total 578.01 238.43
=
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NOTE: 33
OTHER EXPENSES
Tin Lakh
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Electricity charges 26.67 11.93
Repairs and maintenance
Buildings 10.56 15.20
Others 4.89 =
Insurance 0.58 -
Rates and taxes 10.42 1.83
Pracessing charges 1,122.69 595.96
Commission & Brokerage 388.02 231.28
Digital Marketing Expenses 466.03 157.10
Advertisement and sales promotion 531.44 2420
Transportation and handling charges 1B84.70 84.44
Legal and professional expenses 51.79 129.29
Provision for bad and doubtful deposits and advances 67.60 -
Printing and stationery 25.00 15,02
Travelling and conveyance 57.81 25.17
Communication expenses 591 4.18
Loss on sale/ discard of property, plant and equipment 44,78 17,59
Bank and credit card charges 73.29 32.25
Payment to auditors (Refer details below) 6.58 3.75
IT and Subscription expenses 27.27 -
Interest & Late filing on statutory payments 1.48 1.53
Outsourcing, housekeeping and security expenses 7.70 5.28
Sundry Balances written off 1.50 1139
Recruitment Expenses 44.60
Miscellanecus expenses 60,99 39.31
Total 3,222.30 1,406.70
Payment to auditors:
% in Lakh
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
For audit fees (including Limited Review fees) 6.08 3.75
For tax audit fees 0.50 -
For other services ¥ -
For reimbursement of expenses -
Total 3.75

6.58
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NOTE: 34

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The major components of income tax {income)/ expense are:

Statement of Profit and Loss:

% in Lakh
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current income tax
Current income tax charge - -
(a) -
Deferred tax
Relating to erigination and reversal of temporary differences (453.07) (5.23)
MAT credit {entitlement)/ write-off : -
(B) (453.07) (5.23)
Total (A+B] {453.07) 5.23
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OC! during the year
T in Lakh
Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans 22.79 103
| tax on re t of defined benefit plans (5.88) {0.35)
Net (gains)/ losses on re ent of defined benefit plans 16.93 0.68
Reconciliation of tax (income)/ exg and the ace g profit/ (loss) multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate
Tin Lakh
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Accounting Loss before income tax (1,645,23) 87.93
Tax expense/{credit] at India's statutary income tax rate of 25.17% (March 31, 2022: 25.17%) (414.10) 20.87
Expenses disallowed for tax purposes 1.08 .20
Others (40.05) (26.31)
Net tax expense//{credit} at India's Statutory Income tax rate of 25.17% -453.07 -5.23
Deferred tax expense/ (credit) (Refer Note - n
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 453.07 523
MAT credit (entitlement)/ write-off -
Total (0.00) (0.00
MNOTE: 35
EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/{loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the welghted average number of equity shares outstanding

during the year,
The following reflects the profit/{loss) and €quity share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Rin Lakh
As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Eamings Per Share (EPS) is calculated as under:
Profit/ (Loss} as per the Statement of Profit and Loss (a) -1,192.16 88,16
Loss for calculation of EPS (a) (1,192.15) B8.16
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of Basic EPS (8) 8,55,519 1,15,754
Basic EPS (%) (A/8B) {139.35) 76.16
Weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding 8,55,519 1,15,754
Weighted average number of potential equity shares*
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of Diluted EPS 8,585,519 1,15,754
Diluted EPS (%) ] (139.35) 76.16
Nominal value of shares (%) 10.00 10,00

Since the company does not have any potential equity shares outstanding, the basic and diluted EPS are the same




House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023

36 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, AsatApril1,
2023 2022 2021

(a) Contingent liabilities :
Disputed Demand/Claims - - -
Bank Guarantees 5.00 = .
Claims not acknowledged as debt # ' ‘

(b) Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 133,29 -
provided for (net of advances)
Customs duty on capital goods and raw materials imported under advance licensing/ - - -

EPCG scheme, against which export obligation is to be fulfilled

36.1 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which any provision was required for foreseeable
36.2 Bank guarantee is given by HOMLPL to MCGM in order to ensure faithful compliance of Waste Management Plan / Debris Management
Plan approved by the MCGM

37 Segment information

37.1 The principal business of the Company is of 'dealing in Garments & Accessories and Beauty Products ' throug retail stores and online
channels. All other activities of the Company revolve around its main business. The Board of directors, has been identified as the chief
operating decision maker (CODM]. The CODM evaluates the Company's performance, allocates resources based on analysis of the various
performance indicators of the Company as a single unit. CODM have concluded that there is only one operating reportable segment as
defined by Ind AS 108.

37.2 Geographical information
The Company operates in two geographical environments i.e. in India and outside India.
The Company's revenue from continuing operations from external customers by location of operations and information about its non-
current assets by location of assets are detailed below:

Revenue from External

Particulars For year ended| For year ended
March 31, 2023 | March 31,2022

Within India 4,144 .54 2,277.87
Outside India 876.77 578.37
Total 5,021.30 25856.24
Non-current Assets*
Particulars As at March 31, (As at March 31,
2023 2022
Within India
Outside India - -
Total 3 -

*Non-current assets exclude investments in subsidaires, loans, finance lease receivables, other financial assets, and deferred tax assets.
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38 Employee benefit plans

38.1 Defined contribution plans:

reporting period.

(a) Provident fund and pension

In accordance with the Employee’s Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1852, eligible employees of the Company are entitled to
receive benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make monthly
contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary. The contributions, as specified under the law, are made to the
provident fund administered and managed by Government of India (GOI). The Company has no further obligations under the fund managed by
the GOl beyend its monthly contributions which are charged to the statement of Profit and Loss In the period they are incurred, The benefits are
paid to employees on their retirement or resignation from the Company.

Contribution to defined contribution plans, recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year under employee benefits expense, are as

under:

|Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

i) Employer's contribution to provident fund and pension 9,30 2.99

ii) Employer's contribution to labour fund 0.11 0.40

iii) Employer's contribution to state insurance corporation 5.25 3.99

Total 14.66 7.38

(b) Defined benefit plans:

Gratuity (Unfunded)

The Company has an obligation towards Bratuity, a unfunded defined benefit retirement plan covering all emplayees. The plan provides far lump
sum payment to vested employees at retirement or at death while in employment or on termination of the employment of an amount equivalent
to 15 days salary, as applicable, payable for each completed year of service. Vesting accurs upon complation of five vears of service. The Company
accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on an actuarial valuation.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation was carried out for the year ended March 31, 2023 by
an independent actuary, The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were
measured using the projected unit credit method,

(A) Thraugh its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:
(1) Salary risk:
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase in the
salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.
{2) Interest rate risk
Afallin the discount rate which is linked to the G.5ec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the
discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset,
(3) Investment risk:
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which s determined by reference to market yields at the
end of the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit, Currently, for the plan
in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other debt instruments,
(4) Mortality risk:
Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk.

(B) Principal actuarial assumptions used:
The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows,

Gratuity (Unfunded)

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at April 1, 2021
1. Discount rate - Company 7.45% 7.31% 6.86%
2. Salary escalation - Company Management - 5% 6.00% 6.00%

Non Management - 7%
3. Rate of employee turnover - Company

-1 0%
L::;t;; 23 ﬁanr Zeaz%ffS% Upto 4 years - 10% Upto 4 years - 10%
bi -2 5 -

Above 40 years - 10% 5 years and above - 2% years and above - 2%

4. Mortality rate Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) UIt,
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(C) Expenses recognised in profit and loss
W Gratuity (Unfunded)
For year ended March | For year ended March
31, 2023 31, 2022
Service cost:
Current service cost 14.72 1.89
Net Interest cost 2.70 9.18
Components of defined benefit cost recognised in profit or loss 17.42 11.07

The current service cost and the net interest expenses for the year are included in the ‘Employee benefits expenses’ line item in the Statement of
profit and loss.

(D) Net interest cost recognised in profit or loss:

Particulars Gratuity (Unfunded)
For year ended March | For year ended March
31, 2023 31, 2022
Interest cost 2.70 9.18
Interest income - -
Net interest cost recognised in profit or loss 2.70 9.18
(E) Expenses recognized in the Other Con prehensive Income (OCI)
[E;Ltlculars For year ended March | For year ended March
31, 2023 31, 2022
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation for the year
- Due to changes in demographic assumptions 7.93 -
- Due to changes in financial assumptions 12.79 (0.34)
- Due to experience adjustment 2.07 (1.01)
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income
Net (income)/expense for the period recognized in OCI 22.79 (1.35)
(F) Amount recognised in the consolidated balance sheet
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year B4.65 36.94
Fair value of plan assets = -
84.65 36.94
(G) Net asset/(liability) recognised in the consolidated balance sheet
'En;gnised under: As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Leng term provision 72.29 36.38
Short term provision 12.37 0.56
Total 84.66 36.94

(H) Mavements in the present value of defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars For year ended March | For year ended March
31, 2023 31,2022

Opening defined benefit obligation 36.94 27.25
Current service cost 14.72 1.89
Interest cost 2.70 9.18
Actuarial losses 22.79 (1.38)
Transfer in/{out) obligation 7.51

Benefits paid from the fund

Closing defined benefit obligation 84.66 36.94

(1) Maturity profile of defined benefit blig

Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of For year ended March | For year ended March
reporting 31, 2023 31, 2022

Year 1 cashflow 12.37 0.06
Year 2 to 5 cashflow 43.73 2.78
Year 6 to 10 cashflow 34,05 6.22
More 10 year 70.42 110.61

Total expected payments 160.57 119.67
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(1) Sensitivity analysis

The Sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible change of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of

the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant,

lied assumptions in isolation. While each of these sensitivities hold
isolation and the asset value changes may offset the impact to s
Benefit Obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit meth
applied in calculating the Defined Benefit Obligation presented above. The

preparation of the Sensitivity Analysis from previous year.

ome extent.

These sensitivities show the hypathetical impact of a change in each of the
s all other assumptions constant, in practice such assumptions rarely change in
For presenting the sensitivities, the present value of the Defined
od at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that
re was no change in the methods and assumptions used in the

Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of For year ended March | For year ended March
reporting 31, 2023 31, 2022
Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions

Rate of discounting

(+0.5% change) -3.20% (4.34%)
{-0.5% change) 3.40% 5.49%
Rate of salary increase

(+0.5% change) 2.90% 5.22%
(-0.5% change) (2.80%) (4.41%)

(K) Other disclosures

The weighted average duration of the obligations as at March 31, 2023is 7 years,
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40 Financial instruments and risk management

40.1 Capital risk management

The Company’s objective,
reduce the cost of capital,
through banks or raise

when managing capital is to ensure the going concern operation and to maintain an efficient capital structure to
support the corporate strategy and meet shareholder's expectations. The policy of the Company is to borrow funds
through equity which is supported by committed borrowing facilities to meet anticipated funding requirements. The

Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic conditions and the requirement of financial
markets. The capital structure is governed by policies approved by the Board of Directors, and is monitored by various metrics. The following

table summarises the capital of the Company :

As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022 Asat April 1, 2021
Short term debts*{ineluding current maturities of long term debt) - 16.33 1317
Long term debts* - 210.84 850.79
Total Debts - 22717 B63.96
Total Equity 4,626.66 479.93 (232.91)
Net debt to equity ratio - 0.47, (3.711)

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management,

covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial

The Company has not defaulted on any loans payable, and there has been no breach of any loan covenants.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
April 1, 2021,

* Debt excludes lease liabilities

Categorles of financial instruments

The following table provides categorisation of all financial instruments

processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2023, March 31,2022 and

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31,2022| AsatApril 1, 2021
Financial assets
Measured at FVTPL
(a) Investments 1,917.31 - -
Measured at amortised cost
(a) Loans (including inter corporate deposit) 10.15 9.32 12.50
(b) Security deposits 424.32 105.35 93.05
(c) Deposits with bank (Fixed Depaosits) 10.56 5.14 1.01
(d) Cash and cash equivalent 110.93 96,77 21.57
(e) Bank balance other than (d) above - - -
(f) Trade receivables 227.74 349.78 443.07
(g) Other financial assets - - -
Total financial assets 2,701.01 566.36 571.20
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
(a) Borrowings - 227.17 863.96
(b) Trade payables 52542 267.95 216.07
(c) Lease Liabilities 4,691.90 544,57 636.40
(d) Other financial liabilities 201.56 81.68 97.33
(e} Security Deposits 72.55 67.13 62.14
Total financial liabilities 5,491.43 1,188.50 1,875.90

EQ

ial risk

objectives

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial

liabilitles is to finance the Company’s operations, The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables,

and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations,

and cash

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company periodically reviews the risk management policy so that the

management manages the risk through

properly defined mechanism. The focus is to foresee the unpredictability and minimise potential
adverse effects on the Company's financial performance, The Company’s overall risk management
adverse effects of financial market on the Company's performance are as follows:

procedures to minimise the potential
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39 Related party disclosures
39.1 Details of related parties

Description of relationship

Name of the related party

Holding Company

Aditya Birla Fashion Retail Limited

Key management personnel

- Whole Time Director

- Director (Effective 1 June, 2022)

- Director (Effective 1 June, 2022)

- Director (Effective 1 June, 2022)

- Director (Effective 12 December, 2022)

- Director (Upto 28th July 2022)

- Director (Effective 1 June, 2022 upto 30 November, 2022)

Masaba Gupta
Vivek Mehra
Ashish Dikshit
Jagdish Bajaj

Sagar Chhabra
Geetika Anand

Ullal Sooraj Bhat

Enterprises over which key management personnel is able to exercise
significant influence (where transactions have taken place)

Jaypore E-Commerce Private Limited (Effective 1 June, 2022)

39.2 Transactions during the year with related parties
For year ended For year ended
; P
S (e OeOian March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
AJHolding Company
Issue of Equity Shares (Including Securities Premium) 5,545.64 -
B|Key management personnel
I|Masaba Gupta
Managerial Remuneration 191.22 144.72
House Rent Perquisite 25.75 15.00
Past Employment benefits 3.03
Professional Fees - 45.00
Reimbursement of Expenses - 0.91
Il|Sagar Chhabra
Managerial Remuneration 16.18 <
Sale of Products 0.11 -
D|Enterprises over which key management personnel is able to exercise significant
influence*
IlJaypore E-Commerce Private Limited
Sales (Net of discounts & Returns) 3.55

The transactions with related parties are made in the n
length transactions. All the related party transactions a

39.3 Amounts outstanding with related parties

ormal course of business and on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s
re reviewed and approved by board of directors,

5. No.

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

A

o

Key management personnel
Masaba Gupta
Managerial Remuneration Payable
Reimbursement of Expenses

Enterprises over which key management personnel is able to exercise significant
influence*
Jaypore E-Commerce Private Limited

Trade Receivable

0.55

32.83
0.04
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{i). Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk.

(a) Interest rate risk:
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations
with floating interest rates,
The Company manages its interest rate risk by having fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis
Since the company does not have significant exposure to interest rate risk due to its minimal outstanding borrowings and insignificant interest
cost, the interest rate sensitivity analysls is not calculated.

(b} Foreign currency risk:
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when
revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency).

Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposures as at the reporting date:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31,2022 Asat April 1, 2021

{a}. Financial liabilities:
In USD " 3 -

Eguivalent in % lakhs - . 5

(b). Financial assets:

In USD 38,009 14,082 -
In EURO = = "
Equivalent in % lakhs 31.24 10.69

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD, Euro, CNY exchange rates, with all other variables held
constant. The impact on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities, Sensitivity due to
unhedged Foreign Exchange Exposures is as follows:

Impact on Profit/(Loss) before tax for the year

For Year ended March| For Year ended March|

Particulars 31,2023 31, 2022

(a). Financial liabilities:
USD currency:
0.50% increase (%) - A
0.50% decrease (%) = =

(b). Financial assets:

USD currency:
0.50% increase (%) 1.56 053
0.50% decrease (%) (1.56) (0.53)

(ii). Credit risk management
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial
loss. To manage this, the Company periodically assesses financial reliability of customers and other counterparties, taking into account the
financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of financial assets. Individual risk limits are set and
periodically reviewed on the basis of such information. Credit rick from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the
Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved
counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty.

The Company only deals with parties which hae good credit rating given by external rating agencies or based on the Company’s internal
assessment.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recavery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan
with the Company. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to
recover the receivable dues where recoveries are made, these are recognised as income in the Standzlone Statement of Profit and Loss.




(a)

(iii).
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Trade receivables

The Company doesn't have sufficient Historic data or trends for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on trade receivables. The
Company has adopted a policy to review the trade receivables outstanding for more than six months, the expected exposure has been
recognised as a provision. Credit risk has always been managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously
monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

Liquidity risk management

The Company’s principle sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operations. The Company
believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements.

Further, the Company manages its liquidity risk in a manner so as to meet its normal financial obligations without any significant delay or
stress. Such risk is managed through ensuring operational cash flow while at the same time maintaining adequate cash and cash

equivalents position. The management has arranged for diversified funding sources and adopted a policy of managing assets with liquidity in
mind and monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a regular basis,

Surplus funds not immediately required are invested in certain financial assets which provide flexibility to liquidate at short notice and are
included in cash equivalents, Besides, it generally has certain undrawn credit facilities which can be accessed as and when required, which are
reviewed periodically.

Liquidity risk table
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments,
Particulars Uie 15 years 5 years and Above Total

1year
March 31, 2023
Borrowings - - - -
Lease Liabilities 988,14 3,439.31 1,500.69 5,928.14
Trade payables 525.42 - - 525.42
Other financial liabilities 201.56 - - 201,56
Security Deposit 40.00 44.00 84.00
Total 1,755.11 3,483.31 1,500.69 6,739.12
March 31, 2022
Borrowings - 210.84 - 210.84
Lease Liabilities 208.59 607.62 44,30 950.51
Trade Payables 267.95 - = 267.95
Other Financial Liabilities 8168 - - 81.68
Security Depaosit 60.00 24,00 84.00
Total 648.22 878.46 68.30 1,594,98
April 1, 2021
Borrowings - 850.79 - B50.79
Lease Liabilities 197.82 445,31 131.59 77472
Trade Payables 216.07 - - 216.07
Other Financial Liabilities 97.33 - - 97.33
Security Deposit 40.00 44.00 84.00
Total 511.22 1,336.09 175.59 2,022,980
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41 Falr value measurements
This note provides information about how the Company determines fair vaiues of various financial assets and financial liabilities.
41.1 Fair value of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
The Company has not measure any financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

41.2 Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required)
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in these financlal statements approximate their
fair values.

42 Disclosure as per Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
The company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantee or security to any party as per section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Detalls of Investments made
by the company are given in Note 5 in financial statement

43 Other Notes
43.1 The Company does not own benami properties, Further, there are no praceedings which have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder,

43.2 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during each reporting period. During each reporting period, the Company has not traded
or invested In Crypto currency or Virtual Currency.

43.3 There were no Scheme of Arrangements entered by the Company during each reporting period, which required approval from the Competent Authority in terms of
sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013

43.4 Relatlonship with struck-off companies
Based on the information available with the company, it did not have any transactions with Companies struck off.

43.5 The Company has not advanced or losned or invested funds to any other persan(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {Intermediaries) with the understanding that
the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

43.6 The Company has not made any delay in Registration of Charges under the Campanies Act, 2013,

43.7 Code of Social Security, 2020
The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employ t and post-employ t benefits received Presidential assent in September
2020. The Code has been published in the of India. H , the date on which the Code will come into effect has nat been notified, the Company will assess
the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related Impact in the period when the Code becomes effective.




House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31,2023

All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated
44 Ratio Analysis and its elements

a) Current Ratio = Current assets divided by Current liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, | Asat March 31,

2023 2022
Current assets 3,665.23 1,115.13
Current liabilities 1,537.92 934.99
Ratio (In times) 2.39) 1.19
% Change from previous year 100.84%]

Reason for change more than 25%:

Increase in FY 22-23, on account of increase in current investments in Mutual funds.

b) Return on Equity Ratio = Net profit after tax divided by average equity
Particulars As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2023 2022
Net profit after tax (1,209.09) 88.84
Total equity* 2,553.30 123.51
Ratio -0.47 0.72
% Change from previous year -165.84

*Average equity represents the average of opening and closing total equity.

Reason for change more than 25%;

Decrease in FY 22-23, on account of investments in marketing, advertisement and increase in employee cost

c) Inventory Turnaover Ratio = Cost of materials consumed divided by average

Paittentiis As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2023 2022

Cost of materials consumed 1,465.44 371.79

Average Inventory 536.99 300.97

Ratio (In times) 2.73| 1.24

% Change from previous year 120.92%|

Reason for change more than 25%:

Increase in FY 22-23, on account of increase in turnover during the year while maintaining similar inventory levels,

d) Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Credit Sales divided by average trade

Ssidicutin As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2023 2022

Credit Sales* 5,021.31 2,856.24

Average Trade Receivables # 246.82 334.45

Ratio (In times) 20.3 8.54

% Change from previous year 133.22%|

* Credit sales includes sale of products, services and scrap sales.

Reason for change more than 25%:

Increase in FY 22-23, on account of increase in turnover during the year while maintaining similar receivables as on




e] Trade payables turnover ratio = Credit purchases divided by average trade payables

f)

E

h
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Varticutais As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2023 2022

Credit Purchases 1,600.22 416.83

Closing Trade Payables 396.68 242.01

Ratio (In times) 4.03| 1.72

% Change from previous year

57.30%

Reason for change more than 25%:

Increase in FY 22-23, on account of increase in purchases during the year along with timely settlements,

Net Capital Turnover Ratio = Sales divided by Net Working

capital

Particulars As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2023 2022

Sales (A) 5,021.31 2,856.24

Current Assets (B) 3,669.23 1,115.13

Current Liabilities (C) 1,537.92 934.99

Net Working Capital (D = B - €) 2,131.31 180.14

Ratio (In times) (E= A / D) 2.36 15.86

% Change from previous year -85.14% ]

Reason for change more than 25%:

Increase in FY 22-23, on account of inproportionate increase in T/O ratio vis-a-vis Current ratio

Net profit ratio = Net profit before tax divided by Sales

Pucticilars As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2023 2022

Net profit before tax {1,645.23) 82.93

Sales 5,021.31 2,856.24

Ratio -33% 3%

# Change from previous year -1228.52

Reason for change more than 25%:

Decrease in FY 22-23, on account of investments in marketing, advertisement and increase in employee cost

Return on Capital employed (pre -tax) = Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) divided by average Capital Employed
Perticulirs As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 2022
Profit before tax (A) (1,437.25) 172.00
EBIT (B) = (A) (1,437.25) 172.00
Total Assets (C) 10,364.41 1,848.31
Current Liabilities (D) 1,537.92 934.99
Capital Employed (E)=(C)-(D) 8,826.49 913.33
Ratio (In %) -16% 19%
% Change from previous year -186.46%

Reason for change more than 25%:

Decrease in FY 22-23, on account of increase in losses during the currey year.




—_

Debt Equity ratio = Total debts divided by Total Equity

Particulars As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2023 2022

Total Debts - 227.17

Shareholder’s funds - 4,626.66

Ratio (In %) ‘ 0.05

% Change from previous year -100.00%)|

Reason for change more than 25%:
Decrease in FY 22-23, due to repayment of Debt.

i) Debt service coverage ratio= Earnings available for debt services dividend by total interest and principal repayments.
As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars 2023 2022
Profit after tax (A) -1,209.09 88.84
Add: Non cash aperating expenses and finance cost
-Depreciation and amortisation (B) 578.01 238.43
-Finance cost (C) 207.98 89.08
- Provision for doubtful debts (D) 67.60 -
Total Non-cash operating expenses and finance cost (Pre-tax) (E= 853.59 327.51
Total Non-cash operating expenses and finance cost (Post-tax) (F 638.76 245.08
= E (1-Tax rate))
Earnings available for debt services (G = A+F) -570.33 333.92
Debt service
Interest (H) 5.88 34.48
Lease payments (1) 611.08 236.22
Principal repayments (J) 227.17 -
Total Interest and principal repayments (K= H + | + J) 844.14 270.70
Ratio (In times) (L= G/1) -0.68 1.23
% Change from previous year -154.?79{4

Reason for change more than 25%:
Decrease in FY 22-23, due to cashloss incurred during the year and repayment of debt out of proceeds from issue of shares

45 Events after balance sheet date
No significant adjusting event occurred between the balance sheet date and date of the approval of these financial
statements by the Board of Directors of the Company requiring adjustment or disclosure.
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46 First-time adoption of Ind-AS

46.1 Reconciliation of total equity as at March 31, 2022 and April 1, 2021

Particulars Note| Asat March 31, As at April 1, 2021
2022
Total equity (shareholder’s funds) under previous GAAP 47167 389.91
Ind AS Adjustments:
Gratuity Impact as per valuation e .73 135
Present Value of Security Deposit given on |ease d (10.34) (1.12)
Transaction Cost related to term loans b
Depreciation and Interest on ROU asset and Lease liability a 31717 -
Conversion into Financial Liability [ - 622,63
Gain on early termination of lease a
Deferred Tax Impact f 216 (0.06)
Lease rent Concessions (37.95) -
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (2.02)
Total adjustment to equity (8.24) 622.80
Total equity under Ind AS 479,91 (232.91)
46.2 Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended March 31, 2022
Particulars Note For Year ended March
31,2022
Profit after tax as per previous GAAP 81.76
Ind AS Adjustments:
Gratuity Impact as per valuation e 138
Present Value of Security Deposit given on lease d (9.22)
Depreciation and interest on ROU asset and Lease liability a 37.17
Deferred tax impact f .22
Lease rent Concessions (27.95)
Total adjustment to profit or loss (6.40)
Profit after tax under Ind AS B88.17
Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (net of Deferred tax) € 0.68
I'L"“' comprehensive income under Ind AS 88.84

Note: Under previous GAAP, total comprehensive income was not reported. Therefore, the above reconciliation starts with profit under the

previous GAAP,

46.3 Impact of Ind AS adoption on the statements of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2021

There were no significant reconciliation items between cash flows prepared under Indian GAAP and those prepared under Ind AS.

46.4 Notes to first-time adoption:

a. Leases

Under previous GAAP, the lease payment made for the properties taken on lease is recognised as Rent Expenses in the Statement of Profit and
Loss for the period. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees
and lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. Under Ind AS, the Company should recognise right-to-use
asset (ROU asset) and lease liability for the properties taken on lease subject to exemption provided in the Ind AS 116.

On application of Ind AS 116, the nature of expenses has changed from lease rent to depreciation cost for the right-to-use asset, and finance cost
for interest accrued on lease liability. There Is no change in accounting by the lessor.

b. Borrowings
Under previous GAAP, transaction costs incurred in connection with borrowings are charged upfront to Statement of Profit and Loss for the
period/year. Under Ind AS, transaction costs are included in the initial recognition amount of financial liability and charged to Statement of Profit
and Loss using effective interest method,

¢. Discounting of long-term Provision
Under the previous GAAP, the Company has accounted for provisions, including lang-tarm provision, at the undiscounted amount. In cantrast, Ind
AS 37 requires that where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of provision should be the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The discount rate should not reflect risks for which future cash flow estimates have been
adjusted. Ind AS 37 also provides that where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage
of time.




d. Security Deposit
Under the previous GAAP, interest free lease security deposits (that are refundable in cash on completion of the lease term) are recorded at their
transaction value. Under Ind AS, all financial assets are required to be recognised at fair value. Accordingly the Company has fair valued thesa
security deposits under Ind AS and the difference between the fair value and the transaction value of the security deposit has been recognised as
Right-to-Use Assets,

€. Actuarial gains and losses
The impact Is on account of measurement of employee benefits obligations as per Ind AS 18. Under previous GAAP, actuarial gains and losses were
recognised in profit and loss. Under Ind AS, the actuarial gains and losses forming part of remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability /
asset, are recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) under Ind AS instead of profit or loss. The actuarial gains for the year ended March
31, 2022 were % 1.38 Lakhs, with tax % 0,34 Lakhs. This change does not effect total equity, but there is a decrease in profit before tax of % 1,38
lakhs, with tax % 0,34 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2022.

f. Deferred Tax
The previous GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits
and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using balance sheet approach which focuses on
temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. Various transitional adjustments
has resulted in recognition of temporary differences,

8. Expected Credit Allowance on Trade Receivables
Under Ind AS, impairment allowance has been determined based on forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) model which has led to an increase
in the amount of provision as on the date of transition. The Company chose to calculate impairment allowance under simplified approach for trade
receivables where the Company does not separately track changes in credit risk.

47 Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassed wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classification / disclosure,
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